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Winter Meeting Announcement

he winter meeting of the Historical society
of Charles County, Inc. will be held on Saturday,
January 18, 2003 at 2:00 p.m. at Christ Episcopal
Church in La Plata,

Reservations will not be necessary because
dinner will not be served. Light refreshments will
be served and guests are welcome.

The topic for this event will be presented by
Jennifer Pitts of the Southern Maryland Studies
Center (SMSC). She will present an informative
lecture on the latest product at the SMSC. The
product is Heritage Quest On Line Census
Records.

Coming Events

Plans are now being made for our May 2003
Spring Meeting. The topic will be “Slot Machines
in Charles County.” Further details at the time of
our next mailing.

Fa

This topic will be of interest to many of you
because it will allow for you to trace your heritage
from the time of the first census. I received a
preview of this exciting item in the recent past and
was truly amazed as to the amount of information
on file and the speed with which it can be retrieved.

Again, the specifics on this meeting are:

Speaker: Jennifer Pitts

Topic:  Heritage Quest On Line Census Records
Date: January 18, 2003

Time:  2:00 p.m.

Location: Christ Episcopal Church, La Plata

Editor’s Note

In keeping with our past October article on the
Piscataway Indians in the days of the early
colonization of the east coast of our country, I
thought a reprint of the following article would be
appropriate. This article was originally published
n April 1990 and is reprinted in its entirety.

The Editor



4
mrnee

The RECORD

Publication of The Historical Society of Charles County, Inc.

No. 48 April 1990

Mr. Michael J. Mazzeo, Jr., President

Mr, Garth E. Bowling, Jr., Editor

The Cornwallis Or Mattawoman Neck, 1608 - 1890

by Joseph Y. Rowe

Editor’s Note: This is the centennial year of the town of
Indian Head. With this in mind, Mr. Rowe has produced
this well researched article in an effort to give us a wider
perspective and appreciation for the Indian Head area.
Mr. Rowe is an active member of the Historical Society
and serves on the Program Committee.

The first white man to visit this peninsula was
Captain John Smith.(1) He includes the Matta-
woman Neck in his 1608 map. Following closely
on the heels of John Smith was Henry Fleet, (2)
who was both an explorer and a trapper. These
two men separately explored and mapped most
of the Chesapeake area.

Probably no one will ever challenge the fact
that Smith and Fleet were the first Europeans to
set foot on the Mattawoman Peninsula, but it is
entirely possible they were not. In the years
1565-1585, the Spanish established a mission in
Prince William County 3 just across the river in
Virginia. It is conceivable they hunted and fished
here. this area was easily accessible to them by
the river.

It was not until 1654 that any thought of colo-
nization of the Mattawoman Peninsula was
made. In that year, the second Lord Baltimore,
Cecilius Calvert, made a manor grant to his
friend and council member, Thomas Cornwallis.
This grant embraced 5,000 acres.4 It was
bounded by the Potomac River and the Matta-
woman Creek. The third boundary or the land
boundary was disputed from the outset; however,
a reasonable approximation of this boundary is
an extension of the western border of Chap-
man’s Landing from the Potomac River to the
Mattawoman Creek (see map). Thus, the grant
included not only present day Indian Head, but
also Glymont and Potomac Heights. The area
was henceforth known as Cornwallis Neck as
well as Mattawoman Neck.

Cornwallis accepted the grant, but he never

established his residence there. Like so many
English gentlemen of this era, he came to Ameri-
ca for adventure and for wealth. The most lucra-
tive occupation in seventeenth century Maryland
was fur trading. Cornwallis became deeply in-
volved in the fur trade.l® He maintained his head-
quarters in St. Mary’s where he had extensive
land holdings including his home, the 2,000 acre
estate of Cross Manor.

In the year 1665, the governor of Maryland
set aside all that land lying between the Matta-
woman and the Piscattaway Creeks as an Indian
Reservation.() This, of course, included the
Cornwallis Neck. This might have been a further
reason why Thomas Cornwallis did not establish
a residence there; but at the same time it gave
him almost exclusive rights to the fur trade in that
area.
Cornwallis died in England before 1688. His
entire estate, including the Cornwallis Neck, was
left to his wife, Penelope.(”) Penelope, in turn,
conveyed the property to Captain Edward Pye.
This was the beginning of a dynasty that would
dominate the peninsula for almost two centuries.
Edward died in 1696 and according to English
laws of primogeniture extant at that time, the en-
tire 5,000 acres was left to his eldest son,
Charles.(8)

Charles Pye then was the third owner of the
Mattawoman or Cornwallis Neck. While one can
infer with near certainty that neither Cornwallis
nor Edward Pye established residence there, it is
quite possible that Charles did. The fact that his
brother, Walter, held his power of attorney and
negotiated many of his business deals () suggests
Charles had other preoccupations. If Charles did
establish residence on the peninsula it was surely
at the Glymont end. Indians were at the other
end and there was a law, though much violated,
which stated white men could not establish resi-
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might easily infer these businesses catered largely to
the steamboat patrons.

A history of the development of the Comwallis
Neck prior to 1890 would be incomplete without
some mention of the origin of the name “Indian
Headlands”.(39) As the entire lower end of the penin-
sula was once an Indian Reservation, the Indian por-
tion of the name needs no further explanation.

Webster’s Dictionary defines a headland as a
promontory or high piece of land extending into a
large body of water. This definition exactly fits the
piece of land on the far side of the valley at the old
dock or at the end of Dashiell Road.

The name Indian Head is used in both War of
1812 and Civil War records in referring to this partic-
ular point and the area nearby. As early as 1859 Indi-
an Headlands appears on a map 4% and by 1864
maps were using the name Indian Head. Both maps
place the name at this particular point.

It was here that Ensign Dashiell landed in 1890. It
was at this point that Ensign Dashiell built his proving
ground. As the naval installation grew and the town
developed, the name Indian Head became indelible.
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The native Southern Marylanders assisted the Con-
federate war effort by smuggling. Objects smuggled
were mainly food, drugs (?6) and messages. Every
creek along the Potomac, this included the Matta-
woman and Pomonkey, had a number of small boats
which participated in this activity nightly. Many young
men escaped across the Potomac to enlist.

The guns from the Battles of the First and Second
Manassas could be easily heard on the Comwallis
Neck.(27) Stories about this were still being told by
area old folk as late as the 1930s.

It was previously noted that beginning early in the
18th Century, land was farmed and tobacco was the
principal crop. By the middle of the 19th century, this
land was womn out. The farms were sold and subdivid-
ed and the wealthier farmers moved away. Fishing
then became the principal livelihood of the few who
remained. Two of the principal fisheries were Mt.
Pleasant and deep Point (see map). Their markets
were mainly Alexandria and Washington, but people
came from all over Southern Maryland 28) to Indian
Head (as it was beginning to be called) to buy fish.

Land transfers during the 19th century were fre-
quent. In 1772, Ann Pye, daughter of John H. Pye,
inherited the Mt. Pleasant Farm. Ann married Robert
Doyne Simms. This land remained in the Pye-Simms
family until 1816 when it was sold to Joseph Watson.
In 1834, Watson divided the farm into two parts (see
map) Mt. Pleasant and Mt. Pleasant Farm and Fish-
ery.(29) Mt. Pleasant was sold to the Irwin family who
in turn sold the property to the U. S. Government in
1891. In 1835, George Smoot bought the Mt. Pleas-
ant Farm and Fishery. In 1890, this tract of land was
purchased by the U. S. Government.(30)

The Farm and Fishery became the Naval Proving
Ground, the golf course and officers housing area.
Mt. Pleasant, better known as the Irwin Farm, be-
came the area devoted to Federal housing for civilian
employees of the Nawy.

John H. Pye, in 1772, left his son, Edward Jo-
seph Pye, three farms (see map): Six Chimneys,
Hopewell and Kenwood. Edward married a Mitchell
as did his daughter.31) Six Chimneys remained in the
Pye-Mitchell family until 1871. It was sold to the U.
S. Government in 1919,

The Hopewell Farm remained in the Pye family
until 1861 when it was purchased by John W, Jen-
kins. It remained with the Jenkins family until 1890
and was sold to the U. S. Government in 1918.(32)

The Kenwood tract stayed in the Mitchell family,
descendants of Edward J. Pye until early in the 20th
centur%r. It was sold to the U. S. Government by
1920.33)

The final piece of land as far as purchase by the
U. S. Government is concerned was the old Jenkins

Farm. This was left by John H. Pye in 1772 to his
daughter, Margaret. She died a spinster and the
property was purchased by Dr. James Edelin in
1796.634) In 1819, it was bought by Charles Jenkins.
It remained in the Jenkins family until 1879 and was
sold to the U. S. Government in 1890.35) This prop-
erty is significant as it was the site of the Naval Pow-

- der Factory established in 1900.

These six parcels of land, all ultimately purchased
by the U. S. Government, amount to just over 2,000
acres. The Cornwallis Neck contains yet another
3,000 acres. In the Will of John H. Pye in 1772, his
daughter, Mary Clare, received 500 acres; his wife,
Henrietta, about 1,500 acres; and his son, Charles,
about 1,000 acres. These properties were sold, divid-
ed and mortgaged a number of times so that the Pye
family had completely disappeared as land owners by
1890.

There were many who purchased parcels of this
land. Perhaps the largest single buyer was Leonard
Marbury and his son, Addison. Others who became
large land owners on the Comwallis Neck were: Wil-
liam Barker, Samuel H. Cox and John W. Waring.

While the Proving Ground, Powder Factory and
later the N. O. S. became the destiny of the lower end
of the Cornwallis Neck, the development of Glymont
was an important happening in the upper end. The
principal seat of the Pye family seems to have been on
the Potomac River at the end of the present Cedar
Lane. The Pye family had a landing there and with the
advent of the steamboat this landing became a steam-
boat landing. When Leonard Marbury built his landing
just up the river from the Pye Wharf, the two E%?ether
made the largest river port in Charles County.'3

The name, Glymont, was introduced by the
Washington Fruit Growers Association in 1850.037) [t
was a part of a promotional scheme to attract Wash-
ington residents to take summer excursions there.

After the Civil War, the village of Glymont began
to emerge. As early as the 1870s, George Hunt, Syl-
vester Smith and David Ivins were operating business-
es with this address. By 1880, James Cooke and wil-
liam Henry had joined them. Mr. Smith now had a
post office in the rear of his store. Dr. Nathaniel
Chapman took care of the medical needs of the com-
munity, Marcellus Cox was their only lawyer.(38/ At
this time, two saloons appeared on the scene: one
run by Richard Knott; the other by David Ivins.

In 1889, the Upper Glymont Excursion and Im-
provement Co. purchased the Marbury Wharf and
combined the two into an attractive river resort re-
plete with hotel. In that same year, Joseph Carter
and George Swann opened a race track. Jousting
was also a feature,

The 1880 village had only 75 residents, so orne
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dence within three miles of an Indian settlement.

Charles Pye decided to put his land to work.
He leased tracts of land not only to his two broth-
ers but to seventeen other families.19 Among
these families we find names still prevalent in the
area today, viz: Clements, Gardiner, Farrall,
Welch, Edelin, Manning, Thomas, Gough and
Simms.(11)

These leases (12) were for as little as 50 acres
and as much as 125 acres. The rent was 1,000
pounds of tobacco due May 1, one or two bush-
els of wheat due September 1, one fat turkey at
Christmas and six fat chickens in mid-summer.
All buildings and fences became property of the
landlord. Leases ran for the life of the tenant, his
wife and children.

In 1736, Indian George Williams (13) filed a
complaint against Charles Pye for using his land
in violation of the Indian Reservation Agreement
of 1665. This was carried to trial and the deci-
sion was made in favor of Charles Pye, who
pointed out the grant to Cornwallis of 1654 pre-
dated the Indian Reservation Agreement.

At the time of the first settlement at St. Mary’s
there were an estimated 8,400 Indians in South-
ern Maryland.(149) By 1720, there were fewer
than 200 and probably no more than thirty in the
Cornwallis Neck. Where had they gone? Most
had died of diseases, introduced by the white
man, to which they had no natural immunity.(15)
Many had been killed in wars with the Susque-
hannocks. Still others had left in anger caused by
broken treaties. Treaties were indeed broken, but
by the red man as well as the white man.

In 1748, all of the land west of the Matta-
woman was returned to Charles County.(16) This
land, which included the Cornwallis Neck, had
been the property of Prince George's County
since that County was established in 1696.

By 1750 Charles Pye had died.(17) The entire
5,000 acres was left to his eldest son, John H.
Pye. John continued the property leases estab-
lished by his father. John H. Pye died in 1772.
(18) Here for the first time, the Pye estate, and in
particular, the Cornwallis Neck, saw divisions. To
some extent these divisions have obtained down
to modern times. One third of the peninsula went
to his wife, Henrietta. His three daughters, Ann,
Margaret and Mary Clare, each received 500
acres. His two sons, Charles and Edward, divided
the remainder of the land.

The demise of John H. Pye was the precursor
to the demise of the Pye empire. The division of
property following his death would beget further
divisions, not only through inheritance but
through the sales outside the family as well. By
1890, there would be no property left in the
name of Pye in Cornwallis Neck.

The 1800 census shows that Charles, son of
John H. owned 30 slaves.{1% This suggests a very
large estate even after the six-way division of
1772. Charles is also remembered as the man
who built the church. Public Roman Catholic
worship was prohibited by law between the years
1692 and 1776. It is entirely within reason to as-
sume that during these years Mass was said in the
private Pye chapel for the Catholic residents of
the peninsula. In the year 1800, Charles gave (or
sold) land to the church (20) and erected a chapel
there which he modestly named St. Charles.

It is noted that Edward (21), the other son of
John H. served as a First Lieutenant in Captain
Stonestreet’s Fourth Cavalry during the War of
1812-1814. He and the Captain were probably
kinsmen as there were several marriages between
the Pye and the Stonestreet families.

In 1814, the British marched on Washington,
burned the city, and quickly retreated to the Pa-
tuxent where their ships were waiting for them.
As land troops attacked Washington from the
northeast, the British Navy was in the Potomac at
the southwest for support if needed. As the Brit-
ish Navy withdrew and sailed down the Potomac,
the American Navy set up gun batteries along the
Virginia and the Maryland shores. Commodore
Oliver Perry (22 commanded a battery on the
high bank above the Potomac at Indian Head.
This may be the first time the words “Indian
Head” were used in any official way.

The Civil War came and found not only Corn-
wallis Neck but all of Southern Maryland occu-
pied by Federal troops. Thirteen thousand Union
(23) soldiers were stationed on the Maryland shore
between Ft. Washington and Cedar point. These
men were under the command of General Jo-
seph Hooker. There were no actual encamp-
ments on Cornwallis Neck, but there were Union
Camps at nearby Pomonkey and Mason Springs
(24), Batteries of guns were set up at both Gly-
mont and Indian Head. The one at Glymont was
directed at High Point, a Confederate battery di-
rectly across the Potomac in Virginia.(25)



